

MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE

CHAPTER I

GENERAL PROVISIONS

REGULATION 1-4. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 5. Fees

a.- c. **NO CHANGE**

d. Fees shall be paid according to the following table:

CHAPTER I

MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE

Food Facility Operating Permit FEE SCHEDULE - Effective July 21, 2006

Permits, Inspections

NO CHANGE

MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE

Food Facility Operating Permit FEE SCHEDULE - Effective July 1, 2007

Permits, Inspections

NO CHANGE

CHAPTER I

MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE

Food Facility Operating Permit FEE SCHEDULE - Effective July 1, 2008

Permits, Inspections

NO CHANGE

MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE

FEE SCHEDULE - Effective July 21, 2006

Permits, Inspections, Plans Examination

Non-Food Environmental Health Operating Permits	Permit Subtype	1 Yr. Fee
NO CHANGE		

Non-Food Environmental Health Operating Permits	Permit Subtype	1 Yr. Fee
NO CHANGE		

Food Service Licensing		Fee
NO CHANGE		

Environmental Health Plan Review
NO CHANGE

Environmental Health Plan Review Type	Permit Subtype	Fee
NO CHANGE		

Swimming Pool Plan Review	Permit Subtype	Fee
NO CHANGE		

Water and Waste Operating Permits	Permit Subtype	1 Yr. Fee
NO CHANGE		

Water and Waste Operating Permits	1 Yr. Fee
NO CHANGE	

Water and Waste Plan Review		
NO CHANGE		
Plan Review	Initial Fee	Maximum Fee

Water System Site Sampling Plan, Emergency Operations Plans, Backflow Prevention Plan or Other Plans	Fee
NO CHANGE	

Water and Waste Plan Review	Flat Fee
Approval of Sanitary facilities for a Subdivision of 150 lots or less.	\$450.00 per 150 lots
The fee specified above applies to each phase of a Subdivision of 150 lots or less. If a Subdivision includes more than 150 lots, the fee applies to each multiple group of 150 or less (e.g., a proposal for a Subdivision of 350 lots would require a fee of \$450.00 plus \$450.00 and \$450.00 for a total flat fee of \$1,350.00)	
Trailer Coach Park facilities of 100 leased spaces or less.	\$600.00 per 100 spaces
The fee specified above applies to each group of 100 spaces or less. If a facility includes more than 100 spaces, the fee applies to each multiple group of 100 or less (e.g. a facility of 300 spaces would require a fee of \$600.00plus \$600.00and \$600.00 for a total flat fee of \$1,800.00).	
Review of on-site wastewater soils and hydrology report representing a group of 50 or less proposed lots (or 40 acres) whichever, is the lesser in area.	\$525.00 per 50 or less lots
The fee specified above applies to each group of 50 or less proposed lots. If a facility includes more than 50 spaces, the fee applies to each multiple group of 50 or less (e.g. a facility of 120 lots would require a fee of \$525.00 plus \$525.00 and \$525.00 for a total flat fee of \$1,575.00)	
Review of plan for public water supply distribution line (including extensions) and associated appurtenances for a system group of 150 connections or less.	\$600.00 per 150 or less proposed connection
The fee specified above applies to each group of 150 or less proposed connections. If a facility includes more than 150 connections, the fee applies to each multiple group of 150 of less (e.g. a facility of 200 connections would require a fee of \$600.00plus \$600.00for a total flat fee of \$1,200.00)	
REVIEW OF ENTITLEMENT PLANS SUBMITTED TO THE ONE STOP SHOP PROCESS.	\$225.00
THIS FEE SPECIFIED ABOVE APPLIES TO REVIEWS OF ENTITLEMENT PROJECT SUBMITTALS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR ADEQUATE POTABLE WATER AND MANAGEMENT OF SANITARY SEWAGE. THE FEE APPLIES TO PRELIMINARY PLATS, REZONING ACTIONS, COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS, DEVELOPMENT MASTER PLANS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND FINAL PLATS.	

REVIEW OF ONE STOP SHOP PROCESS VARIANCE APPLICATIONS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR ADEQUATE POTABLE WATER AND MANAGEMENT OF SANITARY SEWAGE.	\$25.00
REVIEW OF ONE STOP SHOP PROCESS TEMPORARY USE APPLICATIONS (EXCEPT SPECIAL EVENTS) TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR ADEQUATE POTABLE WATER AND MANAGEMENT OF SANITARY SEWAGE.	\$25.00
Transfer of Ownership/Subdivision Name Change of Previously Approved Subdivision	\$200.00
Master Plan Review and Approval	\$500.00
Well Site Review and Approval	\$675.00
Storage Tank (Atmosphere and /or Pressurized)	\$675.00
Water and Waste Plan Review	Flat Fee
NO CHANGE	

Sewer Collection Systems Plan Review	Flat Fee
NO CHANGE	
On-Site Wastewater Treatment Facilities*	
NO CHANGE	

REGULATION 6. - 14. NO CHANGE

MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE

CHAPTER II

SEWAGE AND WASTES

SECTION 5

REFUSE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES

REGULATION 1. to REGULATION 3.

NO CHANGES

REGULATION 4. Frequency of Collection

- a. The frequency of collection shall be in accordance with regulation of the collection agency but not less than that shown in the following schedules:

- (1) Garbage only - twice weekly
- (2) Refuse with garbage - twice weekly
- (3) Rubbish and ashes - as often as necessary to prevent nuisances and fly breeding.

- b. ~~Any proposal for a~~ A variance from the required frequency ~~RATE MAY BE GRANTED TO A PERSON WITH MORE THAN FIVE (5) PERMITTED VEHICLES, TO ALLOW FOR THE COLLECTION of collection must first be approved by the Department. GARBAGE ONCE WEEKLY. THE VARIANCE MAY BE GRANTED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER UPON SUBMISSION OF AN ACCEPTABLE GARBAGE COLLECTION FREQUENCY PLAN TO THE DEPARTMENT DEMONSTRATING The proposal will include a plan that demonstrates~~ that no public health hazard~~S~~ or nuisance~~S~~ will exist and that fly breeding will be controlled by either biological, chemical or mechanical means. ~~After a plan is found acceptable by the Department, it must also receive approval from the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality who will then grant the variance prior to implementation of the plan.~~

~~ALL GARBAGE COLLECTION FREQUENCY VARIANCE PLANS SHALL PROVIDE FOR RANDOM INSPECTIONS BY THE DEPARTMENT OF AT LEAST 1% OF ALL GARBAGE COLLECTION.~~

~~The variance may be revoked whenever the director determines that the circumstances warranting the variance no longer exist.~~

- c. ~~Any garbage collection frequency variance plans approved and granted by ADEQ or the Department shall contain provisions, which include random inspections by the Department of at least 1% of all garbage collection containers. VARIANCE REQUESTS PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH b. OF THIS REGULATION SHALL~~

BE SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT ON APPLICATION FORMS APPROVED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER. AN APPLICATION SHALL NOT BE COMPLETE UNTIL THE APPLICANT HAS PAID THE VARIANCE FEE LISTED IN CHAPTER ONE OF THIS ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE.

- D. A PERSON REQUESTING A VARIANCE, PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH b. OF THIS REGULATION, SHALL GIVE NOTICE OF THE REQUESTED VARIANCE TO EACH PERSON WHOSE REFUSE COLLECTION IS PROPOSED TO BE AFFECTED. NOTICES SHALL BE IN A FORM APPROVED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER, AND SHALL DESCRIBE THE REQUESTED VARIANCE. EACH NOTICE SHALL BE MAILED OR LEFT AT THE RESIDENCE OR PLACE OF BUSINESS OF EACH PERSON PRIOR TO THE START OF VARIANCE COLLECTION.

- E. THE STANDARD COLLECTION SERVICE SET FORTH IN THIS CHAPTER PRESCRIBES A MINIMUM LEVEL OF SERVICE AND DOES NOT PRECLUDE A WASTE COLLECTOR FROM PROVIDING A HIGHER LEVEL OF SERVICE.

- F. IF THE VARIANCE PLAN IS FOUND TO BE ACCEPTABLE BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER, THE DEPARTMENT WILL FORWARD A COPY OF THE PLAN TO THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (ADEQ). IF APPROVAL OF THE VARIANCE PLAN IS REQUIRED BY ADEQ, THE DEPARTMENT MAY WITHHOLD ITS PLAN APPROVAL UNTIL WRITTEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED FROM ADEQ. IF NO APPROVAL OF THE VARIANCE PLAN IS REQUIRED FROM ADEQ, THE DEPARTMENT WILL APPROVE THE PLAN AND THE APPROVED VARIANCE PLAN SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 30 DAYS FOLLOWING ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER APPROVAL.

- G. THE VARIANCE MAY BE REVOKED UPON DETERMINATION BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER THAT A PUBLIC HEALTH HAZARD OR NUISANCE EXISTS OR THE FACTS DO NOT SUPPORT A VARIANCE.

REGULATION 5. to REGULATION 8.
NO CHANGES

MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE

CHAPTER II

SEWAGE AND WASTES

SECTION 6

PRIVIES, JOB TOILETS

REGULATION 1. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 2. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 3. Earth Pit Privy

- a. No Change
- b. The earth-pit shall have a minimum capacity of fifty (50) **CUBIC** feet per seat and shall not be less than four (4) feet deep measured from the original ground level.

REGULATION 4. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 5. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 6. Job Toilets, Chemical Toilets

- a. No person shall initiate or proceed with construction, erection, alteration, repair, or razing project without first having provided an adequate number of suitable sanitary job toilet ~~S facilities~~ for the use of **PERSONS** ~~workers~~ on the project in a ratio of **AT LEAST** 1 toilet per ~~1-30~~ **1-20 PERSONS**. Such toilet ~~S facilities~~ shall be of the water-flushed or chemical type **APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT**, and located on or within two hundred (200) feet of each work area within the project site ~~and of a type approved by the Department~~.

REGULATION 7. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 7. NO CHANGE

MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE

CHAPTER VI

BATHING PLACES - PUBLIC AND SEMIPUBLIC SWIMMING POOLS

SECTION 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

REGULATION 1. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 2. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 3. Permit Required

No public or semipublic bathing place shall be maintained or operated in Maricopa County without a valid operating permit issued by the Department. The permit shall be displayed in a conspicuous place on the premises where the public may readily observe it. No permit shall be issued until the applicable permit fee has been rendered. Permit fees are listed in Chapter I, Regulation 5 of the Environmental Health Code. If the operating permit for ~~a public or semipublic swimming pool, special use pool, spa, or wading pool lapses or is invalid for a period of more than one (1) year, the pool shall be in compliance with the current code requirements in order to qualify for a new operating permit.~~ **BATHING PLACE IS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT TO BE INVALID DUE TO PERMIT REVOCATION OR THE PERMIT HAS BEEN ALLOWED TO LAPSE FOR A PERIOD GREATER THAN (1) YEAR, THE BATHING PLACE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CURRENT ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE IN ORDER TO QUALIFY FOR AN OPERATING PERMIT.**

REGULATION 4. - REGULATION 15. NO CHANGE

MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,
FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

REGULATION 1. Definitions

(1) to (56) NO CHANGE

(57) “Food Processor” a food establishment that manufactures, packages, labels, or stores food for human consumption.

(A) CLASS 2 – OPERATION WITH ONLY LIMITED PREPARATION OF FOOD ITEMS.

(B) CLASS 4 – OPERATION WITH ADVANCED PREPARATION OF FOOD ITEMS.

(58) to (144) NO CHANGE

(145) “Tempered Water” means potable water ranging from ~~95°F~~ **85°F** to 105°F that comes from an approved source provided through a properly regulated mixing valve.

(146) to (157) NO CHANGE

REGULATION 2. – REGULATION 7
NO CHANGE

REGULATION 8. General Sanitation

The following shall be complied with in all food establishments:

a. – q. NO CHANGE

r. Manual Cleaning and Sanitizing

(1) Sink compartments shall be large enough to permit the accommodation of equipment parts and utensils used in the establishment, and each compartment of the sink shall be supplied with hot and cold potable running water.

(2) Drain boards or easily movable dish tables of adequate size shall be provided and located for proper handling of soiled and cleaned utensils.

(3) Manual washing, rinsing and sanitizing in three compartment systems shall be conducted in the following sequence:

(a) Sinks shall be cleaned prior to use.

- (b) Food residues shall be flushed, scraped or soaked from equipment and utensils.
- (c) Equipment and utensils shall be thoroughly washed in the first compartment with a hot, clean detergent solution;
- (d) Rinsed free of detergent and abrasives with clean water in the second compartment;
- (e) Sanitized in the third compartment by:
 - (1.1) Immersion for at least one-half (1/2) minute in clean, hot water at a continuing temperature of at least 170°F. (77°C.); or
 - (1.2) Immersion for at least one (1) minute in a clean solution continuously containing at least 50 parts per million of available chlorine as a hypochlorite and at a temperature of at least 75°F. (24°C.); or
 - (1.3) Immersion for at least one (1) minute in a clean solution continuously containing at least 12.5 parts per million of available iodine and having a pH not higher than 5.0, at a temperature of at least 75°F. (24°C.); or
 - (1.4) Immersion for at least one (1) minute in a clean solution continuously containing at least 200 parts per million of available quaternary ammonia and at a temperature of at least 75°F. (24°C.); or
 - (1.5) By any other approved means specified in **21CFR178.1010** **40CFR180.940**.
- (4) When hot water is used for sanitizing, the following facilities shall be provided and used:
 - (a) An integral heating device or fixture installed at the sanitizing compartment of the sink, capable of maintaining the water at a temperature of at least 170°F. (77°C.); and
 - (b) A numerically scaled indicating thermometer, accurate to +2°F. (1°C.) located at the sink for checking water temperature; and
 - (c) Baskets of a size and design permitting complete immersion of the tableware, kitchen-ware, and equipment in the hot water.
- (5) Where chemicals are used for sanitization, the operator shall use a test kit or other device to measure the concentration of sanitizer applied.

s. - z, aa. NO CHANGE

REGULATION 9. - REGULATION 11.

NO CHANGE

**MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,
FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 2
FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS**

REGULATION 1. Sanitation

NO CHANGE

Subsection 1 Purpose

NO CHANGE

Subsection 2 Management and Personnel

NO CHANGE

Subsection 3 Food

NO CHANGE

Subsection 4 Equipment, Utensils, and Linens

4-101.11 - 4-101.19 NO CHANGE

4-101.110, 4-101.111 NO CHANGE

4-102.11, NO CHANGE

4-201.11, 4-201.12 NO CHANGE

4-202.11 - 4-202.18 NO CHANGE

4-203.11 - 4-203.13 NO CHANGE

4-204.11 - 4-204.19 NO CHANGE

4-204.110 - 4-204.123 NO CHANGE

4-205.10 NO CHANGE

4-301.11 - 4-301.15 NO CHANGE

4-302.11 - 4-302.14 NO CHANGE

4-401.11 NO CHANGE

4-402.11, 4-402.12 NO CHANGE

4-501.11 - 4-501.19 NO CHANGE

4-501.110 - 4-501.113 NO CHANGE

4-501.114 Manual and Mechanical Warewashing Equipment, Chemical Sanitization - Temperature, pH, Concentration, and Hardness.*

A chemical sanitizer used in a sanitizing solution for a manual or mechanical operation at exposure times specified under ¶ 4-703.11(C) shall be listed in ~~21CFR178.1010~~ **40CFR180.940** Sanitizing solutions, shall be used in accordance with the EPA-approved manufacturer's label use instructions, and shall be used as follows:

(A) A chlorine solution shall have a minimum temperature based on the concentration and pH of the solution as listed in the following chart;

Minimum Concentration mg/L	Minimum Temperatures	
	pH 10 or less °C (°F)	pH or less °C (°F)
25	49 (120)	49 (120)
50	38 (100)	24 (75)
100	13 (55)	13 (55)

(B) An iodine solution shall have a:

- (1) Minimum temperature of 24°C. (75°F.),
- (2) pH of 5.0 or less or a pH no higher than the level for which the manufacturer specifies the solution is effective, and
- (3) Concentration between 12.5 mg/L and 25 mg/L;

(C) A quaternary ammonium compound solution shall:

- (1) Have a minimum temperature of 24°C. (75°F.),
- (2) Have a concentration as specified under § 7-204.11 and as indicated by the manufacturer's use directions included in the labeling, and
- (3) Be used only in water with 500 mg/L hardness or less or in water having a hardness no greater than specified by the manufacturer's label;

(D) If another solution of a chemical specified under ¶¶ (A)-(C) of this section is used, the permit holder shall demonstrate to the Department that the solution achieves sanitization and the use of the solution shall be approved; or

(E) If a chemical sanitizer other than chlorine, iodine, or a quaternary ammonium compound is used, it shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's use directions included in the labeling.

4-501.115, 4-501.116 NO CHANGE

4-502.11 - 4-502.14 NO CHANGE

4-601.11 NO CHANGE

4-602.11 - 4-602.13 NO CHANGE

4-603.11 - 4-603.17 NO CHANGE

4-701.10 NO CHANGE

4-702.11 NO CHANGE

4-703.11 NO CHANGE

4-801.11 NO CHANGE

4-802.11 NO CHANGE

4-803.11 - 4-803.13 NO CHANGE

4-901.11 Equipment and Utensils, Air-Drying Required.

After cleaning and sanitizing, equipment and utensils:

- (A) Shall be air-dried or used after adequate draining as specified in ¶ (a) of ~~21CFR178.1010~~ **40CFR180.940** Sanitizing solutions, before contact with food; and
- (B) May not be cloth dried except that utensils that have been air-dried may be polished with cloths that are maintained clean and dry.

4-901.12 NO CHANGE

4-902.11, 4-902.12 NO CHANGE

4-903.11, 4-903.12 NO CHANGE

4-904.11 - 4-904.13 NO CHANGE

Subsection 5 Water, Plumbing, and Waste

5-101.11 - 5-101.13 NO CHANGE

5-102.11 - 5-102.14 NO CHANGE

5-103.11, 5-103.12 NO CHANGE

5-104.11, 5-104.12 NO CHANGE

5-201. NO CHANGE

5-202.11 (A) Approved System ~~and Cleanable~~ Fixtures.*

(A) A plumbing system shall be designed, constructed, and installed according to law.

~~(B) A plumbing fixture such as a handwashing facility, toilet, or urinal shall be easily cleanable.~~

5-202.11 (B) APPROVED CLEANABLE FIXTURES

A PLUMBING FIXTURE SUCH AS A HANDWASHING FACILITY, TOILET, OR URINAL SHALL BE EASILY CLEANABLE.

5-202.12 NO CHANGE

5-202.13 - 5-202.15 NO CHANGE

5-203.11 NO CHANGE

5-203.12 - 5-203.15 NO CHANGE

5-204.11 - 5-204.13 NO CHANGE

5-205.11 - 5-205.15 NO CHANGE

5-301.11 NO CHANGE

5-302.11 - 5-302.16 NO CHANGE

5-303.11 - 5-303.13 NO CHANGE

5-304.11 - 5-304.14 NO CHANGE

5-401.11 NO CHANGE

5-402.10 - 5-402.15 NO CHANGE

5-403.11, 5-403.12 NO CHANGE

5-501.10 Indoor NO CHANGE

5-501.11 - 5-501.19 NO CHANGE

5-501.110 - 5-501.116 NO CHANGE

5-502.11, 5-502.12 NO CHANGE

5-503.11 NO CHANGE

Subsection 6 Physical Facilities

NO CHANGE

Subsection 7 Poisonous or Toxic

7-101.11 NO CHANGE

7-102.11 NO CHANGE

7-201.11 NO CHANGE

7-202.11, 7-202.12 NO CHANGE

7-203.11 NO CHANGE

7-204.11 Sanitizers, Criteria.*

Chemical sanitizers and other chemical antimicrobials applied to food-contact surfaces shall meet the requirements specified in ~~21CFR178.1010~~ **40CFR180.940** sanitizing solutions.

7-204.12 - 7-204.14 NO CHANGE

7-205.11 NO CHANGE

7-206.11 - 7-206.13 NO CHANGE

7-207.11 - 7-207.12 NO CHANGE

7-208.11 NO CHANGE

7-209.11 NO CHANGE

7-301.11 NO CHANGE

Subsection 8 NO CHANGE

**MARICOPA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,
FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 3
MOBILE FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS**

NO CHANGE

**MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,
FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 4
VENDING MACHINES**

NO CHANGE

**MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,**

**FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 5
MEAT ESTABLISHMENTS**

NO CHANGE

**MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,
FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 6
FOOD RELATED FACILITIES**

NO CHANGE

**MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH CODE
CHAPTER VIII
FOOD, FOOD PRODUCTS,
FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS
SECTION 7
BOTTLED WATER**

NO CHANGE